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BERMAN, SOSMAN & ROSENZWEIG CPAs PLLC

ALL CORRESPONDENCE TO:
30 Jericho Executive Plaza
Suite 200C
Jericho, New York 11753
Tel (516) 826-7600
Fax (516) 826-4343
www.cpataxsavers.com

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS™ AUDIT REPORT

To The Members of
Equal Justice America, Inc:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Equal Justice America, Inc. (a
nonprofit organization) which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023
and 2022, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly. in all material respects.
the financial position of Equal Justice America, Inc. as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the changes
in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required
to be independent of Equal Justice America, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the combined financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Unites States of
America: and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of combined financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the combined financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Equal
Justice America, Inc.’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that
the combined financial statements are available to be issued.



Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the combined financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and the design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Equal Justice America, Inc.’s
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the
overall presentation of the combined financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Equal Justice America, Inc.’s
ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control related matters that we identified during the audit.

’-53‘“"?‘), M(Nmbw; cohs ouCo
Berman, Sosman & Rosenibeig, CPAs PLLC
Jericho, New York

December 21, 2023



Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Prepaid Expenses

Promises to Give (Net)

Current Assets

Property and Equipment (Net)
Total Assets

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Credit Card payable

Grants Payable

Loan Payable- SBA

Loan Payable - Equipment
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities:
Loans Payable - SBA
Loan Payable - Equipment

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Without Donor Restrictions
With Donor Restrictions
Total Net Assets (Deficit)

Total Liabilities and Net Assets (Deficit)

EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30. 2023 AND 2022

Assets

2023

$ 225579
80,400

5.073
_64.626
375,678

8.176

$ _ 383.854

Liabilities and Net Assets (Deficit)

$ 43,526
17,605
489,084
3,480

882
554,577

151,268
4.843

156.111
710,688

(521,177)
194,343

(326.834)

$ 383.854

See Notes to Financial Statements

A
3

2022

$ 98,765
205,711
6.400
65.518
376,394

-0-

$ 376394

§ 22454
11.519
458,518
2,166

0

494.657

147,834
0

147.834
642,491

(543.330)
277.233
(266.097)

$ 376394



EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC.
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

2023 2022
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR
RESTRICTIONS REVENUE AND PUBLIC SUPPORT
Contributions $ 1,223,862 $ 1.207,057
Other Income 0 0
Interest Income 221 249
Realized (losses) on sales of investments (17.942) (5.940)
Net Appreciation (Depreciation) in
Fair Value of investments 16,202 (15.720)
Net Assets Released from Restrictions 374,213 486,122
Total Revenue and Public Support 1.596.556 1.671.768
Expenses:
Program Expenses- Grants and Fellowships 927.876 1,100,590
Fundraising Expenses 350,903 319.168
General and administrative expenses 295.624 284.597
Total Expenses 1,574,403 1,704,355
Increase/ (Decrease) in Net Assets
Without Donor Restrictions 22,153 (32.587)
Change in Net Assets With Donor Restrictions
Contributions 291,323 325,836
Net Assets Released from Restrictions: (374.213) (486.122)
Increase in Net Assets with Donor Restrictions (82.890) (160.286)
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (60,737) (192,873)
Net Assets (Deficit)- Beginning of Year (266.097) (73.224)
Net Assets (Deficit)- End of Year $ (326.834) $ (266.097)

See Notes to Financial Statements
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EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

L2

Cash flows from operating activities: 202
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets ($ 60,737)

Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in
net assets to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation of Property and Equipment 1,404
Decrease/ (Increase) in operating assets:

Prepaid Expenses 1,327
Promises to Give (Net) 892

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts Payable 21,072
Credit Card Payable 6,086
Grants payable 30,566
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 610

Cash flows from investing activities:

Sale of Investments 125,311
Unrealized Losses (Gains) 122,353
Acquisitions of Property and Equipment 9.580
Net cash provided by investing activities 115,731

Cash flows from Financial activities:

Bank Loan Borrowings 7,016
Bank Loan Payments (2,268)
Equipment Loan Borrowings 6,190
Equipment Loan Payments (465)
Net cash provided by financing activities 10,473
(Decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 126,814
Cash and Cash Equivalents- Beginning of Year 98.765
Cash and Cash Equivalents- End of Year $ 225.579

Supplemental Disclosures:

Interest Paid $ 10,366

See Notes to Financial Statements
5

2022

($192.873)

-0-

(2.174)
47

1,402
5,253
97.473

(90.872)

49,100
21,660
0

70.760

(20,112)

118.877

98.765

N/A



EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Program  Fundraising

Grants and Fellowships $ 687,890 0
Salaries 149,603 237,556
Benefit Expense 13,818 25,326
Payroll Taxes 11,573 18,376
Consulting and Prof Fees 9,212 9212
Licenses & Permits 22,207 0

Mailing List 0 11,635

Insurance 650 650

Advertising & Marketing 0 10,493

Occupancy Expense 6,680 6,680

Telephone 3,940 3,940
Office Expense &Supplies 1,424 1,424
Computer & Website Expense 7,847 7.848
Printing & Postage 0 10,087
Dues & Subscriptions 878 878

Temporary Help 6,330 6,330
Merchant & Bank Fees 0 0
Research 5,356 0

Depreciation 468 468

Interest 0 0
Total $ 927876 $350.903

General and

__Admin

0
179,470
13,048
13,883
9,214
0
0
651
10,494
6,680
3,940
2,848
7,848
0
1,757
6,330
28,627
0
468
10.366

$ 295.624

See Notes to Financial Statements
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Total - 2023

687.890
566,629
52,192
43,832
27,638
22,207
11,635
1,951
20,987
20,040
11.820
5,696
23,543
10,087
3,513
18,990
28,627
5,356
1,404

10,366

$1.574.403



EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Program Fundraising

Grants and Fellowships $ 869,899 0
Salaries 136,831 223,156
Benefit Expense 19,792 2,778
Payroll Taxes 10,944 17,848
Consulting and Prof Fees 12,689 12,689
Licenses & Permits 17,732 0
Research 9,573 0
Insurance 631 630
Advertising & Marketing 0 31,125
Occupancy Expense 6,565 6,565
Telephone 3,807 3,808
Office Expense &Supplies 1,612 1,612
Computer & Website Expense 9,679 9.679
Printing & Postage 0 8.442
Dues & Subscriptions 836 836
Temporary Help 0 0
Merchant & Bank Fees 0 0
Total $ 1,100,590 $319.168

General and

__Admin Total - 2022
0 869,899
175,597 535,584
12,152 34,722
14,043 42,835
12,688 38,066
0 17,732
0 9,573
630 1,891
0 31,125
6,564 19,694
3,807 11,422
1,612 4.836
9,678 29,036
0 8,442
1,672 3.344
15,798 15,798
30.356 30.356
$ 284,597 $ 1,704,355

See Notes to Financial Statements
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EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC.

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

Grants and Fellowships
Salaries

Benefit Expense

Payroll Taxes

Consulting and Prof Fees
Licenses & Permits
Mailing List

Insurance

Advertising & Marketing
Occupancy Expense
Telephone

Office Expense &Supplies
Computer & Website Expense
Printing & Postage

Dues, Licenses & Subscriptions
Temporary Office Help
Merchant & Bank Fees
Research

Depreciation

Interest

Total

__Total — 2023

$ 687,890
566.629
52,192
43,832
27,638
22,207
11,635
1,951
20,987
20,040
11,820
5,696
23,543
10,087
3,513
18,990
28,627
5,356
1,404
10,366
$ 1,574,403

See Notes to Financial Statements
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Total - 2022

869.899
535,584
34,722
42,835
38,066
17,732
9,573
1.891
31.125
19,694
11,422
4,836
29,036
8,442
3,344
15,798
30,356
0
0
0

$1.704.355



EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022
NOTE 1.

NATURE OF ACTIVITIES:

Equal Justice America, Inc.. (the organization) is a non-profit organization that provides grants to
legal services that deliver civil assistance to the poor.

NOTE 2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting:

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, Equal Justice America, Inc. considers all highly
liquid debt instruments, purchased with a maturity of three months or less, to be cash equivalents.

Property and Equipment

It is the organization’s policy to capitalize significant expenditures for property and equipment.
Lesser amounts are expensed. Purchased property and equipment is capitalized at cost. Donations
of property and equipment are recorded as contributions at their estimated fair value. Such
donations are reported as unrestricted contributions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset
to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions
of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted contributions.
Depreciation is being computed by the straight-line method over five to seven years for accounting
and income tax purposes.

Promises to Give

Unconditional promises to give (pledges), less an allowance for uncollectible amounts where
applicable, are recognized as increases in net assets without donor restrictions when the pledge is

made.
9



EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022
NOTE 2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -continued

Net Assets

Net Assets of the organization are classified based upon the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions, as follows:

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions

Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations and are therefore, available for the
general operations of the organization.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets that are subject to donor-imposed stipulations that will be met either by actions of the
organization and/or the passage of time. As such restrictions are satisfied, net assets with donor
restriction are reclassified to net assets without donor restriction in the accompanying statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Contributions:

Contributions are reported at fair value at the date the contribution is received. Contributions
received are recorded as net asset with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations
that limit the use of the donations.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to more than one
program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis
that is consistently applied. The expenses that are allocated include expenses related to employee
compensation and benefits, occupancy expenses, office expenses and insurance which are all
allocated on the basis of estimates time and effort.

10



EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -continued

Tax Status

Equal Justice America, Inc. is a Not-For-Profit organization exempt from federal income taxes
under Section 501 (¢ ) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code and, therefore, has made no provision for
federal income taxes on the accompanying financial statements. In addition, Equal Justice
America, Inc. has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service not to be a “Private
Foundation™ within the meaning of Section 509 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code.

NOTE 3. CONCENTRAION OF CREDIT RISK

Equal Justice America, Inc. maintains various bank and money market accounts that at times may
exceed insured credit limits. The organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts
and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk with respect to such balances.

NOTE 4. INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Investments are stated at fair value and consisted of the following at December 31:

2023 2022
Bonds $ 37,476 0
Mutual Funds 42,924 113,097
Equities 0 92,614
Total $ 80,400 _%205.711

Purchases of marketable securities are initially recorded at cost; donated securities are recorded at
fair value on the date of the contribution. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are recorded
separately in the statement of activities. Investment fees have been netted against income in the
statement of activities.

The organization values its investments at fair value, based on prices provided to it by its custodian.
In determining fair value, the highest priority is given to quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3
measurements).

11



EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 31, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 4. INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS — continued
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical investments in active markets

Level 2: Other significant observable inputs (including, quoted prices for similar
investments, interest rates, credit risk, etc.)

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs

The following is a summary of the inputs used in valuing the organization’s investments at
December 31:

2023 2022

Level 1 $ 80,400 $205,711
Level 2 -0- -0-
Level 3 -0 -0-
Total $ 80.400 $205,711

The organization invests in various investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to
various risks such as interest rates, market and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with
investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment
securities will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the organizations
statement of financial position.

NOTE 5. PROMISES TO GIVE (NET)

Promises to Give (Net) are recorded when the pledge is made by the donor. As of June 30, 2023
and 2022, the organization has received pledges of $286,609 and $108,031, respectively, and has
provided an allowance for doubtful accounts on these promises of $221,983 and $42.,513,
respectively, for amounts not expected to be collected. All other pledges are expected to be received
within one year.

12



EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 6: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consist of the following at JUNE 30:

2023 2022
Furniture and Equipment $ 1.185 $ 1,185
Machinery and equipment 38.196 28.616
Subtotal 39,381 29,801
Less: Accumulated depreciation (31.205) (29.801)
$ 8176 h) __-0-

NOTE 7: GRANTS PAYABLE

The organization provides Grants, which at times provide for payments extending over a number
of years. As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, $130,000 of Grants Payable are to be paid beyond a period
of twelve months from the balance sheet date, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.

NOTE 8: LOANS PAYABLE

On May 21, 2020 the organization was granted an Economic Injury Disaster loan through the U.S. Small
Business Administration in the amount of $150,000. The loan bears interest at a rate of 2.75% and matures
November, 2050. Monthly payments of $641 are due beginning November 2022 and will be applied first to
interest and the remainder to the outstanding principal.

Future minimum principal payments under the loan are as follows:
Year Ended June 30,
2024 $3.480
2025 3,577
2026 3,676
2027 3,779
Thereafter 140.236

Total $154.748

13



EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023 AND 2022

NOTE 9: LOANS PAYABLE - EQUIPMENT LOANS

On March 8, 2023 the Company entered into a 5 year equipment loan with Centric Business System
at 22.3% percent finance rate with monthly payments of $54. As of June 30, 2023 the balance was
$1.961, which includes $234 of short term loan and $1,727 of long term loan.

On September 8, 2022 the Company entered into a 5 year equipment loan with Centric Business

System at 13.82% percent finance rate with monthly payments of $94. As of June 30, 2022 the
balance was $3,764, which includes $648 of short term loan and $3,116 of long term loan.

NOTE 10: NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are subject to the following purpose or time restrictions.

2023 2022
Subject to purpose restrictions:
Specific university/college fellowships and grants ~ $194.343  § 277,233

Total net assets with donor restrictions $194.343 $277.233

NOTE 11: LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following reflects the organization’s financial assets as of the balance sheets date, reduced by amounts
not available for general use because of contractual or donor-imposed restrictions within one year of the
balance sheets date.

2023 2022

$ 380,185 $ 369,993
Financial Assets at year end
Less those unavailable for general
expenditures within one year, due to:
Donor-restrictions for specific
university/college fellowships
and grants (194.343) (277.233)
Financial Assets available
to meet cash needs for general
expenditures within one year $ 185,842 $92.,760

As part of its liquidity management, the organization maintains excess cash in a savings account
and mutual funds.

14



NOTE 12: OPERATING LEASE

The organization leases office space under an operating lease which ran from September 1, 2018
through August 31, 2019. Since that time the organization leases the space monthly. The
monthly rental expense is approximately $1,500 per month.

NOTE 13: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 21, 2023, the date which the

financial statements were available to be issued. No events have occurred that would require
adjustments to, or disclosure in, the financial statements.

15
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rom 990

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)
Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.

OMB No. 15450047

2022

m&‘%“ Go to www.irs. orm990 for instructions and the latest information. OI:On:pt:cg::llc

A Fﬂtmmmmnarlutaxgarb_eglnnlng 07501/22 . and ending 06730723

B Check i applicatile: |C Nome of oganizaton D Employer idenlification number

Address change EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC

Dmm Daing business as 13-3708596
Number and sireel (of P.O, box if mail & Not Gelvered 10 street address) Roomsure E Telephone number

[ vt 13540 E BOUNDARY ROAD 804-744-4200

DFM’M City or lown, stale or province, country, and ZIP or fonaign postal code
MIDLOTHIAN VA 23112 G Gross receits$ 1,639,032

DW'*'“ F Name and addrss of princpal officer.

Dmm DAN RUBEN mnnmammnhammuvu @m
1218 SEMPLE COURT W) Aro ol subcrtates incuse? || Yes ] Mo
FREDERICKSBURG VA 22402 f "No.” attach a fisL. Seo instrucbons
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K__Fom of ognizaton: | X] Coporaton | | Tnst | | Associabon | | Oter [L Year of lomaton: 1992 [t Seie of kel domicie. VA

Part | Summary

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activites:
s . ASSISTANCE TO THE POOR AND DISADVANTAGED. THE GRANTS ARE ISSUED TO SPONSOR .
§ ..... FELLOWSHIPS FOR LAW SCHOOL STUDENTS =

3 2 Check this box if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.

o [ 3 Number of voling members of the goveming body (Pat Vi, line 12) ... 3,5

8| 4 Number of independent voting members of the goveming body (PartVl, finetb) 4] 5
S| 5 Total number of indiiduals employed in calendar year 2022 (Part V., fine 28) 5| 16
3| 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) 6| 0
7aTotal unrelated business revenue from Part Vill, coumn (C), line 12 7a 0
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, Part I, line 11 ... ... . ... . . 7b 0
Prior Year Current Year
8 Contributions and grants (Part VUl line th) 1,532,893 1,515,185
2| 9 Program senvice revenue (Part VI ine 29) T 0
3 | 10 Investment income (Part VIll, column (A), fines 3, 4, and 7d) -5,691 -17,720
| 11 Other revenue (Part VIll, column (A), ines 5, 6d, 8c, Sc, 10c, and 11e) 0
12_Total revenue — add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIIl, column (A), ine 12) ... 1,527,202 1,497,465
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) 869,899 687,890
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) B 0
@ | 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) 613,141 662,653
i 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11€) 0
b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) 350,435
@ | 17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 1a-11d, 116-248) 221,315 223,861
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 1,704,355 1,574,404
19_Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12, . ... ... . =177,153 -76,939
P Beginning of Current Year End of Year
20 Total assets (PartX,ne 1) 376,394 383,854
<g| 21 Total liabilites (Part X, line 26) 642,491 710,688
27| 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line20 . -266,097 -326,834
Part I Signature Block
Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this retumn, including accompanying schedules and statements, and o the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, corect, and complete. Declaration of preparer (cther than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge. X
P [ s/a /204
Sign Signature of officer Dale
Here DAN RUBEN EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Type o peint name and title
ProlType preparsrs name Proparors signature Date Check D" PTIN

Paid RICHARD SOSMAN RICHARD SOSMAN 05/08/24 | seitompioyed | P00523272

Preparer | name Berman, Sosman & Rosenzweig, CPAs, PLLC Firmys EIN 11-3408121

Use Only 30 Jericho Executive Plaza Suite 200C

Pows addess Jericho, NY 11753 proce e, D16-826-7600

May the IRS discuss this retum with the preparer shown above? Seeinstrucions _____________________________ [X]ves | |No

Form 990 (2022)
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Form 990 (2022) EQUAL. JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 2
Part Il Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line inthis Part Il ... ... DAY A Ao @

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission:
PROVIDES GRANTS TO LEGAL SERVICE ORGANIZATIONS THAT DELIVER LEGAL

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Fom 990 0r 90-6Z7 e — [ ves [X] no
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
e SN A SR RS [J ves X no
If "Yes," desaribe these changes on Schedule O.

4 Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses. Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,
the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code: )(Expenses § including grants of $ ) Revenuve $ )
GRANTS TO LEGAL SERVICE ORGANZITIONS THAT SERVE THE POOR AND DISADVANTAGED
4b (Code: ) (Expenses § including grants of $ ) Revenve $ )
N
4c (Code: ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) Revenve $ )
N

...............................................................................................................................................................
............................................................................................................................................

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)
(Expenses _$ 928,813 including grants of § 687,890 ) (Revenue $ )
4e Total program service expenses 928,813
DAA
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Form 990 (2022) EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 3
Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules
Yes | No

1 Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If “Yes,”

complete Schedule A e 1| X
2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors? See instructions 2 X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to

candidates for public office? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part! . . . . ... 3 X
4 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h)

election in effect during the tax year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C. Part Il . .. ..., 4 X
$ Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5). or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,

assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Rev. Proc. 98-19? if "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part it 5 X
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors

have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? /f

Vou complele STdle B PILY, :.c..cooovicsin s inpsonimi e s 6
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, induding easements to preserve open space,

the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Parttl 7 X
8 Dndmemganzanmmakmhcolechonsdwodsdamh-stodcaltreasums.oromersmlarassem?lf'Yes. '

complete Schedule D, Part ll | 8
9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a

custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or

debt negotiation services? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IV ... ... o X
10  Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments

or in quasi endowments? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part V. . .. 10
11 if the organization's answer to any of the following questions is “Yes," mnmnmsmneopamw

VI, VIl IX, or X, as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? /f "Yes,"

OIS O D PV . B e G S 11a| X
b Dldtheomamzatbnmponananum&xmesunents—mrsewnﬁeslnPartxIme12 that is 5% or more

of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VW 11b X
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more

of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 If *Yes," complete Schedule D, PatVill . . . . . . 1c
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets

reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IX 11d X
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X 11e| X
f Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses

the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X 11f X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If “Yes,” complete

i T RO T N 12a| X
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If

“Yes," and if the organization answered “No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts Xl and Xl is optional 12b X
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(AXii)? If “Yes,” complete Schedue £ 13 X
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? 14a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking,

fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate

foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Pats fandtv. .. 14b X
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or

for any foreign organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts fland IV . . . ... D —— 15 X
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other

assistance to or for foreign individuals? /f “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts lland IV . . ... 16 X
17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on

Part IX, column (A). lines 6 and 11e? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part I. See instructons .. 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on

Part VIll, lines 1c and 8a? If "Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part Il . . 18 X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line Sa?

NS complols SONOaNe G, PAIE R i o G e R s T R S N S S R S S T s 19 X
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital faciities? If “Yes,” conmle(eScheduleH ___________________________________________ 20a X
b I “Yes™ to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this reurn? 20b
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or

domestic govemment on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If *Yes," complete Schedule |, Parts land Il ... .............................. 21 | X
oA Form 990 (2022)
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Form 990 (2022) EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596

Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules {continued)

27

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on

Part IX, column (A), line 2? If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts fand Ml . ...
Did the organization answer “Yes" to Part VI, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the

organization's current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated

employees? If "Yes,” complete Schedule J
Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than

$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 If "Yes,” answer fines 24b

through 24d and complete Schedule K. If 'No,"go tofine 25a . . .. ... ... .
Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year

10 OGO S WDPMMIMOE BONII? ..o v v o o e e
Did the organization act as an onbehalformforbmdswmndmmanyﬁmdudngtheyaaﬂ ______________________________
Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess beneﬁt

transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part|
Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior

year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ?

W °Y0S," COMPIONS SCHOKNO L PAIL . ............coeoeeeerrinsenerereessesesessssssssssessesaasnensseensnsseessasssssasssenes
Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current

or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%

controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? if “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Parttf
Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key

employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor of employee thereof, a grant selection committee

member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these

persons? If ‘Yes,” complete Schedue L, Partl .,

Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see the Schedule L,

Part IV, instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? /f

*Yes," complete Schedule L. Part IV

“Yes.” complete Schedule L, Part IV

Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified
oonsembon contnbuﬁons?lf'Yos. complefoSd)aduIaM

Did the organization sell, exdu-mge.disposeof. or transfer more than 25% ofrlsnetasels?lf'Yes.
complete Schedule N, Part If

Did the organization own 100%ofanamtydusmga'dedasseparateﬁmnmeorganzamnunderRegulaﬂons
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 If *Yes," complete Schedule R, Part |

Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If “Yes,"” complete Schedule R, Part Ii, li,
orIV endPan V, line 1

...............................................

If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a
controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2

Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable
related organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2

.....................................................................

Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Pat VI

Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations on Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and
197 Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O.

Yes

;

27

]

32

33

34

&

E Lo B R R - - - R

g

&

b

Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthisPartV ... ..

1a

No

Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and
reportable gaming (gambling) WInNINGs 0 Prize WINMErS? ... ... .. .o.ieiiiiiii ittt ettt ee e et

1ic

Form 990 (2022)
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Form 990 (2022) EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 _Page 5
Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued) Yes No
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this retum 2a | 16
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax retums? 2b | X
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? 3a X
b If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If “No" to line 3b, provide an explanation on SchedueO 3b
4a At any tima during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over,
a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial accounty? 4a X
Yoo et e e O M TR COMY.. ..o i doniuini oo s e AR S A A Sk
See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR)
Sa Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter ransaction at any time during the taxyear? . . Sa X
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b X
¢ If*Yes" to line Sa or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? Sc
6a Doesmeauanzaﬁonhawarnnalgmreoemmmamnmnauygmabrmanswoooo and did the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? 6a X
b If *Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or
gifts were not tax deductble? 6b
7  Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods
and services provided fo the payor? 7a
b If "Yes did the organization noltify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? " ™
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was
B T b a0t e e AN O Tt ot ot 7c
d If*Yes” indicate the number of Forms 8282 fled during the year L7a |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? 7e
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indrrectly, on a personal benefit contract? 7f
g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? 7g
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the :
sponsoring organization have excess business hoidings at any time during the year? 8
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds,
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distribuions under section 49662 9a
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? 9b
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a |Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIIl, linRe 12 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilies 10b
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders 11a
b Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts dueorpa:dto other sources
against amounts due or received fromthem) 11b
12a  Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 10412 12a
b If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year ............... | 12 |
13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a s the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? .~~~ 13a
Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which
the organization s licensed to issue qualified healthpians 12
¢ Enter the amount of reservesonhand 13¢
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? 14a X
b If"Yes” has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No,” provide an explanation on Schedule © 14b
15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
wxaes parnchuls pEYMEnk(e) BaiNg e PN . s s e S e R b R N s 15
If "Yes,” see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.
16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? ... ... 16
If “Yes,” complete Form 4720, Schedule O.
17  Section 501(c)(21) organizations. Did the trust, any disqualified or other person engage in any activities
that would result in the imposition of an excise tax under section 4951, 4952 0r 495372 . . 17
If “Yes,” complete Form 6069.
Formmm
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Form 990 (2022) EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596

Page 6

Part VI Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each “Yes” response to lines 2 through 7b below,

and for a "No”

response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.

Check if Schedule O contains a response ornote to any fine inthis Part VI ...
Section A. Governing Body and Management
Yes | No
1a Enter the number of voting members of the goveming body atthe end of the taxyear | 1a | 5
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the goveming body, or
if the goveming body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or simiar
committee, explain on Schedule O.
b Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent |5
2  Did any officer, director, frustee, or key employee have a family retationship or a business relationship with
any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? | . . ... 2 X
3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct
supervision of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? 3 X
4  Did the organization make any significant changes to its goveming documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? 4 X
5  Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? 5 X
6  Did the organization have members or stockholders? . . . .. .. ... 6 X
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, oroﬂmerpefsonsmhadmepowertoebctorappom
one or more members of the governing body? 7a X
b Are any govemance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members,
stockholders, or persons other than e gOVEMING DOGY? | .. . ... ..oiiieiiiiiiririrereseseessissestsseee e eeeeoeeeeeesees 7b X
8 D|dmeorganlzaﬁmmmuamouslydoamemmemeeﬁngsheldowwnttanactbnsundeﬂakendunngﬂmyearbyhefolm :
O TOOOORRTIOGIONT ., o s T e T S s g8a | X
b Each commitiee with authoriy o act on behalf of the goveming body? T 8 | X
9 s there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, whocannotberaachedat
the organization's mailing address? If *Yes," provide the names and addresses on Schedule O.....................c..c.cveeeieeee... 9 X
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Intemal Revenue Code.)
Yes | No
10a  Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? 10a X
b If “Yes,” did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? ... ........ooooveei.. 10b
11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its goveming body before fiing the fom? 11a X
b Describe on Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If "No,"go toline 43 12a | X
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? | 12b| X
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If “Yes,”
AReoO O SOl D ROWBIR IR OO, . ... oo e e e e s 12c | X
13 Did the organization have a written whistieblower policy? . 13 X
14 Dldmeugamzaﬂonhaveawmendownmtremnnonmddeswabnpolm ...................................................... 14| X
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official 15a| X
b Other officers or key employees of the organization 15b X
If “Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process on Schedule O. See instructions.
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arangement :
with a taxable entity during the year? | e 16a X
b ¥ "Yes” did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization'’s exempt status with respect to such amangements? ... ... ... ... iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiieiieeiieee. | 16D
Section C. Disclosure
17 List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be fled PA,RI, VA, WI .
18 Secbon6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (section 501(c)
only) available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
Own website || Another's website [X] Upon request [ ] Other (explain on Schedule 0)
19 Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its goveming documents, conflict of interest policy,
and financial statements available to the public during the tax year.
20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records
DAN RUBEN 13540 EAST BOUNDRY RD
MIDLOTHIAN VA 23112 804-744-4200
DAA Feem 990 (2022)
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Form 990 (2022) EQUAL, JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 7
Part VIl Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthis Part VIl ... D

Section A. Omcu&DMus,Tm,Key&nﬂmamlﬁgmmgm&nm
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization's tax year.

o List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

o List all of the organization’s current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of “key employee.”

e List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (box 5 of Form W-2, box 8 of Form 1099-MISC, and/or box 1 of Form 1099-NEC) of more than
$100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

e List all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

e List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

See the instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.

Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.
©)
(A) Postion
Name and e Aé?: &‘:m:;m"; Ropfxo)mh Mf)uuo Eaﬁml:?m
per woek Ofiou Wid & diwchmiryston) from the from related w:;ﬂm
{ush ny < 3 § g organization (W-2/ organizations (W-2/ from the
hours for g% g g‘g % 1099-MISC/ 1098-MISC/ orpanization and
rolatod 1099-NEC) 1093-NEC) mlated omanizations
= i
below g 3
dolled §re) Er a
()DAN RUBEN
PRk 40.00
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 0.00 |X X 98,145 0 0
(2 STEPHEN HOUGHTO
U 0.00
DIRECTOR 0.00 | X 0 0 0
(3) SONIA MARQUEZ
TP /. 0.00
SECRETARY 0.00 |X 0 0 0
4) LISA TRACY
B e S T 0.00
DIRECTOR 0.00 |X 0 0 0
(5) DAVID SANTACR
T 0.00
PRESIDENT 0.00 X 0 0 0
(6) LARRY ZABAR
RO | 0.00
TREASURER 0.00 X 0 0 0
)
®
©)
(10)
(1)
Form 990 (2022)
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PartVll s.wonA.Olﬁoets.Dtm: Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(©)
Poson
0] (®) {co not check more than one (D) (E) ()]
Name and title Average box, unless person is both an Reportable Reportable Estimeted amount
hours officer and a directorfrustee) compensation compensation of other
per woek —~ from the from related
(st any b ? & !.g w2 organizations (W-2/ from the
hours for g % § 1098-MISC/ 1099-MISC/ orgenization and
redaled 1099-NEC) 109G-NEC) relsled organizations
: i % ;
below
dotied kne) i §
R T — 98,145
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A .. ... .. ... ..
d_Total (addlines Tband 1€) ..o 98,145
2 TMWdW%WMMWbMWm)WWmMMOOOWd
reportable compensation from the organizaton 0
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual . . . 3 X
4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the 4 b
organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such 1
i R S SRR S S SR o L L SRRSO 4 X
5  Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? If "Yes,” complete Schedule J for such person ...................................._ ... 5 X
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year. .
Nrmmdb&\mm Dauipln(nB)dm Oum(gl)sim

2 Total number of independent contractors
received more than $100,000 of compensation from the organization

(including but not fimited to those listed above) who

DAA

Fonnm (2022)
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Form 990 (2022) EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 9
Part VIl Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIl ... D
Total revenve Rkt o s Rersus bckos
tuncticn from tax under
sechons 912014
22 1a Federated campaigns 1a
53 b Membership dues . . 1b
; ¢ Fundraising events 1c
§5 o Rolso orarizatons 14
P e Gowmment grnts (contbufons) e
5’{’_ f Al other contributions, gis, granis,
=8 and simiar amounis not included above ... 1f 1,515,185
Noncash contributions induded in
gﬂ .............................. _‘9 s
s Tobah Aa0 W A=t i 1,515,185
[ousness Cooe
Rl [ B e
Bl B g SR
a c .......................................................
B8
1Y B et RN SN
f All other program service revenue ...................
Total. Add lines 28-2f . .. ... ..ot
3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, and
other similar amounts) S SR e S 221 221
4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds
S ROyaMeB .....ivoisiciseisississvisisiissvisisssseshas sisseivives
i) Real (i) Fersonal
6a Gross rents 6a
b Less rental expenses | 6b
€ Rentd inc. or foss) 6c
d Net nontal InCome or-(I088) .. 5. i ciuiii it ivisessesssstaiin sbesi
7a Gross amount from () Securities (i) Other
sales of assels
other than imentory |72 123,626
$ ] Db Less costor oter
g basis and sales exps. | _7b 141,567
¢ Gain or (loss) | 7c -17,941
§ 1. R INGQRIOE BO88) . v e e i picnsismonmbata g v e e s yassass -17,941 -17,941
(notincdng §
of contributions reported on line
1c). SeePartV,ine 18 8a
b Less: direct expenses 8b
¢ Net income or (loss) from fundraisingevents .....................
9a Gross income from gaming
activities. See Part IV, line 19 9a
b Less: direct expenses 9b
¢ Net income or {loss) from gaming activities .......................
10a Gross sales of inventory, less
retums and allowances 10a
b Less: cost of goods sold 10b
¢ Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory ......................
- Business Code
N G S R S R S R R s
e
c .......................................................
§ AN OMar FOVRNIG:. . s R I R
e Total. Add TNes 118=11d ... .........o.iveeeeereeraneeniuecneansns
12 Total revenue. Seeinstructions .................................. 1,497,465 -17,720 0
Form 990 (2022)

g
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Part IX

Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX

Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, 7b,
8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIll.

()
Tolal expenses

()
Progeam senvice
cxpenses

1

2

3

10
11

Q@ 0o o000

12
13
14
15
16
17
18

19

21

23

Grants and other assislance 1o domestic organizations
and domastic govemments, See Part IV, ins 21

687,890

687,890|

Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line22
organizations, foreign govemments, and

foreign individuals. See Part IV, ines 15 and 16
Benefits paid to or for members

persans (as defined under section 4958(7)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)B)

98,145

49,073

24,536

24,536

468,484

100,530

154,934

213,020

Other employee benefits

52,192

13,818

13,048

25,326

43,832

11,573

13,883

18,376

22,795

7,599

7,598

7,598

Lobbying

4,843

1,614

1,615

1,614

20,987

10,494

10,493

19,296

2,302

4,605

12,389

23,543

7,847

7,848

7,848

Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials

20,040

6,680

6,680

6,680

Conferences, conventions, and meetings
Interest

10,367

10,367

1,404

1,404

1,951

650

651

650

above (List miscellaneous expenses on fine 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 2de expenses on Schedule O,)

28,627

28,627

22,207

22,207

18,990

6,330

6,330

6,330

11,820

3,940

3,940

3,940

Total functional expenses. Add fines 1 thvouch 24e

16,991

5,356

11,635

1,574,404

928,813

295,156

350,435

N
8"'oant:rrl

Joint costs. Complete this fine only if the
organization reported in column (B} joint costs
from a combined educational ign and
fundraising sduatmamed(mi iif

following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) .. .............

Foem 990 (2022)
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Form 990 (2022) EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 _Page 11
Part X Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response ornote toanylineinthisPart X ... ... l—l
B
Beghniang)of year End(of)year
1 Cash—non-interestbearing . .. 1
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 98,765| 2 225,579
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net . .. 65,518| 3 64,626
%, AOOUNS TOCOVEDIS. T . e e e SRR 4
5 Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director,
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlied entity or family member of any of these persons | S
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined
under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)3)B) 6
g 7 Notes and loans receivable. net .. .. . .. .. .. ... 7
8 Inventorles forsale oruse ... .. ... ... 8 I
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 6,400] o 5,073
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other . : :
basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 10a 39,381 : i
b Less: accumulated depreciaon 10b 31,205 10c 8,176
11 Investments—publicly traded securiies . . 205,711 11 80,400
12 Investments—other securities. See Part IV, ine 11 12
13 Investments—program-related. See Part IV, line 11 13
BRI WIS .. i oitan o R S P U g 14
16 m am m m w' m ‘1 ....................................................... 15
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal iN@ 33) ..............c..cooueene..... 376,394 16 383,854
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 33,973| 17 61,131
R e 458,518 18 489,084
19 Defem m ......................................................................... 19
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities .. 20
21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D 21
@ 22 Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director, B
= trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
2 controlled entity or family member of any of these persons . . ... 22
= |23 Secured mortgages and notes payable o unrelated third partes 23
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 24
25 Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D . A A A S S SHR 150,000/ 25 160,473
26 Total Habilities. Add lines 17 through 25 ..........ccoeuuniiieiiiees i, 642,491 25 710,688
Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here | X|
§ and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
§ |27 Net assets without donor restrictions ... =543,330| 27 =521,177
@ |28 Net assets with donor restictions T 277,233 28 194,343
2|  Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 968, check here [ | T
= and complete lines 29 through 33. .
O |29 Capital stock or trust principal, or cumentfunds 29
8130 Paicn or captal surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund 30
3 31 Retained eamings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 31
5|32 Towinetassetsortndbances =266,007] ;2|  -326,834
__133 Total liabilities and net assetsffund balances .. . ... .. . 376,394 33 383,854
Form 990 (2022)
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Form 990 (2022) EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC

13-3708596

Part XI Reconciliation of Net Assets

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X|

—

W O NS WN -

Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12)
Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)
Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1

Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments
Donated services and use of facilities

Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line

By COMNMN (B s s s G D e e I s sy e S sy

1,497,465

1,574,404

.................................................................

-76,939

-266,097

16,202

-326,834

Part Xl  Financial Statements ahd Reporting
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XIl .. .. . i ey P PO P LT AR D

1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: [ | Cash  [X] Accual [ Other

2a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant?

3a As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the

Yes | No

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked “Other,” explain on
Schedule O.

If "Yes,” check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or
reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

[[] separate basis [ ] Consolidated basis [ ] Both consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountamt?
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

[X] separate basis [[] Consolidated basis [_] Both consolidated and separate basis

c If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of

the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant?
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on
Schedule O.

Uniform Guidance, 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart F?
b If “Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the

required audit or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits ........................... 3b

 2c | X

Forrn 990 (2022)
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SCHEDULE A Public Charity Status and Public Support il i 0T

wovm. 08 Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust. 2022

Depariment of the Treasury Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public

— Senics Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number
JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596

Part | Reason for Public Charity Status. (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)
1 A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).
2 A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 920).)
3 A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170{b){(1){A)iii).
4 A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)iii). Enter the hospital's name,
city, and state:

O
3
g
:
§
Z
%
:
:
g
i
:
i
g
g
:
:
:
|

section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part I1.)

A federal, state, or local govemment or govemmental unit described in section 170(b){(1)(A)V).

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a govemmental unit or from the general public

described in section 170[{b){1{A)(vi). (Complete Part I1.)

8 A community trust described in section 170(b){1){A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)

An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or

university: )

10 @ An organization that normally receives (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions, subject to cerfain exceptions; and (2) no more than 331/3% of its
suppont from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part IIl.)

1" An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of
one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 508(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check
the box on lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a D Type |. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlied by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majorty of the directors or trustees of the
supporting organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

D Type II. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

¢ [] Type W functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d D Type lll non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e D Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type Il, Type Ill
functionally integrated, or Type Wl non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

~N o

o

f Enter the number of supported organizations 1]
g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).
(i) Name of supporied (i) EN (iii) Type of organization (iv) Is the ceganization (V) Amount of monetary {vi) Amount of
organization {doscribed on lnes 1-10 listed in your govemning support (see olher support (seo
above (see inskructions)) document? instructions) instructions)
Yes No

(A

(8)

©)

(D)

(E)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule A (Form 990) 2022

DAA
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2022 EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596

Page 2

~Part ll

Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under
Part Ill. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part IIl.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2018 (b) 2019 {c) 2020 (d) 2021 (e) 2022

1

() Total

Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any “unusual grants.”)

Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid
1o or expended on its behalf

The value of services or facilities
fumished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge

Total. Add lines 1 through 3

supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column ()

Public_support. Subtract line 5 from line 4 .

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2018 {b) 2019 {c) 2020 {d) 2021 (e) 2022

7
8

10

1
12
13

() Total

Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the business
is regularly camied on ... ...............

Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(ExplaininPart VL) .. .................

Total support. Add lines 7 through 10

Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (%e ‘WOM) ..................................................................
FltstSyears.lfheForm%Onsforheorgamzawnsﬁrstsecond third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

chack this box and slop e . .... .. s e s s o i AT T T AT TN 1 TV

B
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

14

15

16a
b

17a

18

Public support percentage for 2022 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f))
Public support percentage from 2021 Schedule A, Partll, ine 14 .. ..
33 1/3% support test—2022. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization
33 1/3% support test—2021. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a. andllne151533 1/3% or more, check
this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization
10%facts-and-circumstances test—2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is
10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in

Part VI how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization
10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2021, If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line
15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the facls-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain
in Part VI how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization

DAA

Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2022 EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 3
Part Il Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part II.
If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part I1.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2018 (b) 2019 (c) 2020 (d) 2021 (e) 2022 (f) Total
1  Gits, granis, contibutions, and membership fees
received. (Do not indude any “unususd granis) 1,047,010 1,171,548 1,284,175 1,532,893 1,515,185 6,550,811
2  Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or faciiies
S Ly e b o . 89 a0 4,908 249 221 5,507
3 Gross receipts from activities that are not an
unrelated trade or business under section 513
4  Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf
§ The value of services or facilities
fumished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge
6 Total. Add lines 1through5 1,047,099 1,171,588 1,289,083 1,533,142 1,515,406 6,556,318
7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 3
received from disqualified persons
b Amounts included on fines 2 and 3
received from other than disqualified
persons that exceed the greater of $5,000
or 1% of the amount on line 13 for the year
c m m 7a m 7b --------------------
8 Public support. (Subtract line 7c from
L 6,556,318
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2018 (b) 2019 (c) 2020 (d) 2021 (e) 2022 (f) Total
9 Amounts fromline6 1,047,099 1,171,588 1,289,083 1,533,142 1,515,406 6,556,318
10a Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on secunties loans, rents,
royalties, and income from similar sources
b Unrelated business taxable income (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975
c w m 1% w 1% ------------------
11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not induded on line 10b, whether
or not the business is regularly camied on . ...
12  Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part V1)
13  Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11,
and12) 1,047,099 1,171,588 1,289,083 1,533,142 1,515,406 6,556,318
14  First § years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)3)
organization, check this box and stop here ... ... . ... []
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2022 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, cooma () . 15 100.00 %
16 __ Public support percentage from 2021 Schedule A, Part Il Hne 15 ... ... ..o 16 99.74 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2022 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) . . .. .. .. . 17
18 Investment income percentage from 2021 Schedule A, Part IIl, line 17 18

1%a 33 1/3% support tests—2022, If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and fine 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line

17 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization .....................
b 33 1/3% support tests—2021. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and

line 18isnotmomthan331l3%.d\ed<thisboxandstophere.meorgarmuonmaliﬁwasaptuidysuppomdaganizauon

20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions ... .....................

Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2022 EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596

Page 4

Part IV Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box on line 12 on Part I. If you checked box 12a, Part I, complete Sections A

and B. If you checked box 12b, Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12¢, Part |, complete

Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)

Section A. All Supporting Organizations

1

10a

Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s goveming
documents? If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, expiain.

Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If “Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2).

Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)4), (5), or (6)? if "Yes,” answer
lines 3b and 3¢ below.

Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If “Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the
Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170{c)(2)(B)
pumposes? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use.

Was any supported organization not organized in the United States (“foreign supported organization®)? /f
“Yes," and if you checked box 12a or 12b in Part I, answer lines 4b and 4c below.

Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? If *Yes," describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being confrofled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.

Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If “Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes.

Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? /f "Yes,”
answer lines 5b and Sc below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (i) the reasons for each such action;
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authonizing such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

Type | or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already
designated in the organization's organizing document?

Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control?

Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited
by one or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also support or
benefit one or more of the filing organization's supported organizations? if “Yes," provide detail in Part VI.
Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4958(c)3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity
with regard to a substantial contributor? If “Yes," complete Part | of Schedufe L (Form 990).

Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described on line
7? If "Yes,” complete Part | of Schedufe L (Form 990).

Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time duning the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons, as defined in section 4846 (other than foundation managers and organizations
described in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which
the supporting organization had an interest? If “Yes,"” provide detail in Part VI.

Did a disqualified person (as defined on line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit
from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If "Yes,"” provide detail in Part VI.
Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type Il supporting organizations, and all Type Il non-functionally integrated
supporting organizations)? If *Yes," answer line 10b beifow.

Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to
determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.)

Yes

No

3b

3c

4ab

5a

Igle

Ha

9b

9c

10a

10b

OaA

Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2022 EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596

_Part IV Supporting Organizations (continued)

Yes

11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described on lines 11b and
11¢ below, the governing body of a supported organization? 11a

b A family member of a person described on line 11a above? 11b

c A 35% controlled entity of a person described on line 11a or 11b above? If “Yes" to line 11a, 11b, or 11c,
provide detail in Part V. 11c

Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

Yes

No

1 Did the governing body, members of the goveming body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one or
more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization's officers,
directors, or trustees at all times during the tax year? If “No,"” describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s)
effectively operated, supervised, or controfled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported
organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees were alfocated among the g
supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 1

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If “Yes," explain in Part
VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
supervised, or controfled the supporting organization, 2

Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

Yes

No

1 Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization's supported organization{s)? If "No," describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed i
the supported organization(s). 1

Section D. All Type lll Supporting Organizations

Yes

No

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization's tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (jii) copies of the 5
organization's governing documents in effect on the date of nofification, to the extent not previously provided? 1

2  Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (i) serving on the goveming body of a supported organization? if "No,” explain in Part VI how

the organization maintained a close and continuous working refationship with the supported organization(s). 2
3 By reason of the relationship described on line 2, above, did the organization’s supported organizations have -
a significant voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's
income or assets at all times during the tax year? If "Yes," describe in Part VI the role the organization’s
supported organizations played in this regard. 3

Section E. Type Il Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations

1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).
a The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
b The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 belfow.

c The organization supported a govemmental enfity. Describe in Part Vi how you supported a governmental entity (see instructions).

2 Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below.

Yes

No

a Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt pumposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If "Yes," then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive fo those supported organizations, and how the organization determined

that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 2a
b Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization’s :
involvement, one or more of the organization’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If
"Yes," explain in Part VI the reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would A
have engaged in these activities but for the organization’s involvement. 2b

3  Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b belfow.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or

trustees of each of the supported organizations? If “Yes” or “No,” provide details in Part V1. 3a
b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? If "Yes," describe in Part Vi the role played by the organization in this regard. 3b

DAA Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2022

EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC

13-3708596 Page 6

_PartV

Type i Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations

1

DCheck here if the organization safisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part V). See
instructions. All other Type Il non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A — Adjusted Net Income

{A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

Net short-term capital gain

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Other gross income (see instructions)

Add lines 1 through 3.

Depreciation and depletion

@S WN |-

@G sWN |-

Porlion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or collection
of gross income or for management, conservation, or maintenance of
property held for production of income (see instructions)

7__Other expenses (see instructions)

-~

Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4)

Section B ~ Minimum Asset Amount

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

1

Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):

a_Average monthly value of securities

1a

b _Average monthly cash balances

1b

¢_Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets

1c

d Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c)

1d

e Discount claimed for blockage or other factors
(expfain in detail in Part VI):

Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets

w

Subtract line 2 from line 1d.

w

-

Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount,
see_Instructions).

Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)

Multiply line 5 by 0.035.

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

@~ |

Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to fine 6)

@ IN|o s

Section C - Distributable Amount

Current Year

Adjusted net income for prior vear (from Section A, line 8, column A)

Enter 0.85 of line 1.
Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, column A)

Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

Income tax imposed in prior year

o a W N -

D AW N |-

Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions).

-~

DCheck here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type Ill supporting organization

_(see_instructions).

Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2022

EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC

13-3708596 Paga T

_PartV

Type Wl Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)

Section D - Distributions

Current Year

1__ Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes

2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported

organizations, in excess of income from activity

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations

Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required—provide details in Part Vi)

Other distributions (describe in Part V/). See instructions.

Total annual _distributions. Add fines 1 through ©.

(-0 E N - [ PN (2]

Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive

@~ s W N

(provide details in Part VI). See instructions.
Distributable amount for 2022 from Section C, line 6

10 Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount

Section E ~ Distribution Allocations (see instructions)

Excess Distributions

(W)
Underdistributions

(i)
Distributable
Amount for 2022

1__ Distributable amount for 2022 from Section C, line 6

Pre-2022

Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2022
(reasonable cause required-explain in Part Vi). See
instructions.

3 Excess distrbutions camyover, if any, to 2022

-l a0 v |»
g
3
w

Total of lines 3a through 3e
g Applied to underdistributions of prior years

h_Applied to 2022 distributable amount

Carryover from 2017 not applied (see instructions)

i
i Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f.

4 Distributions for 2022 from
Section D, line 7: $

a_Applied to underdistributions of prior years

o

Applied to 2022 distributable amount

¢_Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2022, if

any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result

greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2022. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in

Part VI. See instructions.

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2023. Add lines 3

and 4c.

8 _ Breakdown of line 7:

EXxcoes Fom' 2018 ..ot

a
b Excess from 2019 .........cvcuvesvacussannin
C
d

Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2022 EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 8
Part VI Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part I, line 10; Part I, line 17a or 17b; Part
I, line 12; Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢, 11a, 11b, and 11¢; Part IV, Section
B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b
3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V, Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E,
lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.)

DAA Schedule A (Form 990) 2022



EQUALJUSTIC 05/08/2024 2.41 PM Pg 28

SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements OMB No. 15450047

(Form 990) Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, 2022
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b.

Depariment of the Treasury AtmhmFonnsso - Open to Public

Name of the organization Employer identification number

_EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596

Part| Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and olher accounts
T TOM bR O oY oot
2 Aggregate value of contributions to (during year)
3 Aggregate value of grants from (during year) .
4 Aggregate value atendofyear .
5 Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised

funds are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control?
Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used
only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose
confeming impermissible private benefit? ... ............. . ... O T P T T P AP P P T T D Yes D No
Part li Conservation Easements.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1 Pumose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).

Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education) Preservation of a historically important land area

Protection of natural habitat Preservation of a certified historic structure
Preservation of open space
2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation
easement on the last day of the tax year. eld at the End of the Tax Year
a Total number of conservation @asements | . . ... ...................coccceieeeeieeeeeeeaaais. 2a
b Total acreage resticted by conservation easements T [ 2b
¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in(a) . [ 2¢
d Number of conservation easements included in {(c) acquired after July 25, 2006, and not on a
historic structure listed in the National Register . . . 2d
3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization curing the
taxyear

5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of
violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? DYes DNo

6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, andeniomngootwvabmeasummsdtﬂngmeyear

8 Does each consefvaﬁon easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)XB)(i)
T e [] ves [] no

9 In Part X, desmmwm«ganmﬁmmmmmmmnnmmnmwmsesmmm
balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the
organization's accounting for conservation easements.

“Part Il Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1a If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works
of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide in Part Xill the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
ari, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,
provide the following amounts relating to these items:
(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VI, fine 1 $

....................................................................................................

(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X $

2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items:

a Revenue included on Form 990, Part Vill, line 1 . J—
b - Aseels: nclided I Form 880; Part Xasicraos ool aa s s i Ul Bt eie Tt Bt S e e 3

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2022
DAA
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2022 EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596

Page 2

_Part Wt

Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

3 Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply):

a Public exhibition d

b Scholarly research e

c Preservation for future generations

4 Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt pumpose in Part
XN

5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar
assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection? ..................... ..

Loan or exchange program
Other

DYes DNo

Part iV Escrow and Custodial Arrangements.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form

990, Part X, line 21.

1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not
included on Form 990, Part X?

Amount
C Beginning BAlANCR | | e 1c
d Addiions during the YBar | ... id
e Distributions during the year . ... . .. 1e
FOENAING BAIANCE | e if
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account abiity? D Yes | | No
b If “Yes" explain the arrangement in Part Xlil. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part XMW ... ... ... ... ..
Part V Endowment Funds.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
(a) Current year (b) Prior year (€) Two years back (d) Three years back (e) Four years back

1a Beginning of year balance . . .. ... .
b Cotiomions. ..o prnesanse
¢ Net investment eamings, gains, and

mes ....................................
d Grants or scholarships
e Other expenditures for facilities and

DIOIRTNIS . o vvicomm s s ava muasvas
f Administative expenses
g End of year balance PO
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasiendowment %
b Permanent endowment %
c Tem endowment %

The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢ should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the

organization by: Yes | No

() Related omganizalions e Safii)
b If “Yes” on line 3aii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? ... .. . ... ... ... 3b

4 Describe in Part XIll the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.

Part Vi Land, Buildings, and Equipment.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of propery (a) Cost or other basis (b) Cost or other basis (¢) Accurmutatod (d) Book value
{invesiment) (cther) deprecabon
1a Lax’ ......................................... : ; : .
b DO .. s
¢ Leasehold improvements
O BN . A 28,616 28,616
@ OB oo o soore i ey s speyice 101765 21589 81 176
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Columnn (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10¢.) ... ... ... 8,176
Schedule D {Form 990) 2022

DAA
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2022 EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 3
Part VIl Investments — Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.
(a) Descriplion of security or category (b) Bock valse () Method of valuatson:
(inchuding name of secusity) Cost or end-ol-year markel value

B OB oo AR S R SN SE B TS
KA AR5 5 A S B o R S RSB L
ot R R S R S R AR
S R S R R S B SR SR
ey T R R
R A B A S S s
S B B S S T o s B TS s
R R i R R N o wdniaes ains s oaiio i
s e e

Toul (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. {B)hne12.)

Part VIli Investments — Program Related.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

(a) Doscription of investment (b) Book vakse

(€) Method of valuation:
Cosl or end-of-year markel value

(1)

{2

(3)

@)

)

(6)

@

(8)

(9)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X. col. (B) line 13.)

‘Part IX Other Assets.

Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description

(b) Book vakue

(1)

@)

(3)

@

(5

(6)

@

(8)

(9)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 15.)

Part X Other Liabilities.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X,

line 25.

1. (a) Dascripbon of Eabikity

(b) Book value

(1) Federal income taxes

(2) SBA LOAN

154,748

(3) EQUIPMENT LOANS

5,125

(4)

(%)

(6)

)

8

)]

Yotal. (Colurnn (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 25.)

160,473

..........................

DAA

Schedule D (Form 990) 2022
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2022 EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 4
Part Xi Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.
1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements 1 1,497,465
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VI, line 12;
a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 2a
b Donated services and use of faciliies | .. ... 2b
O RECAISS T DI YOO ..o oo oo oo coe s o 2c
Ol (Do I PREXIL) .. sk R s St 2d
O AN BRIV B .. s s e S N S A R R SR R S e S 2e
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 s R A AR A A S G Sy 3 1,497,465
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part Vi, fine 12, but not on fine 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Pat Vill, line 70 | _4a
- OWer (Decre Iy PR XML S R S B s 4b :
A O A A A oo e e s o e 8 4c
5 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and dc. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 12.) . ........ ... ... ... ... 5 1,497,465
Part Xl Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.
1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 1 1,574,404
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:
a Donated services and use of facdites 2a
b Prior year adustments e 2b
K A NN oo o s e N S e ot 2c
d Other (Describe in PartXul) ... 2d
A IS TRIIONIY B .. s v s A A R R P S T S e 2e
3 Bublect WO RMWOMINON. ... i e L R e S S T e 3 1,574,404
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIll, line7b 4a
b Other (Describe in Part XIIL) ... ... ... 4b
C Addlinesdaand 4b e 4c
5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part |, in@ 18) ... ... ... .. ... ... ... 5 1,574,404
Part Xlll Supplemental Information.
Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part Ill, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4: Part X, line
2; Part X, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.
Schedule D (Form 990) 2022
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Schedule D (Form 990) 2022 EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596 Page 5
Part Xill Supplemental Information (continued)

.................................................................................................
.....................................................................

Schedule D (Form 990) 2022
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EQUALJUSTIC 05/08/2024 2:41 PM Pg 37

SCHEDULE O
(Form 990)

Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ b
Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 2022

Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.

Depariment of the Treasury Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public

Intemal Revenue Servica Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. ~ N Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number
EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596

.Form 990, Part III - Additional Informatiom .00 0 e

PROVIDES GRANTS TO LEGAL

ASSISTANCE TO THE POOR AND DISADVANTAGED.

SERVICE ORGANIZATIONS THAT DELIVER LEGAL

THE GRANTS ARE ISSUED TO SPONSOR

Form 990, Part VI, Line 15a -~ C

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.

DAA

Schedule O (Form 990) 2022



EQUALJUSTIC 05/08/2024 2.41 PM Pg 38

4562 Depreciation and Amortization OMB No. 1545-0172
Form (Including Information on Listed Property) 2022
Department of the Tressury Attach to your tax return.
Inlemal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form4562 for instructions and the latest information. Senmnce No. 179
Name(s) shown on return Identifying number
EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596

Business or activity to which this form relates
Indirect Depreciation

Part | Election To Expense Certain Property Under Section 179

Note: If you have any listed property, complete Part V before you complete Part I.

8 Meodmum e mounk (000 WRUUOBONRY ... coononon i R s A T S S 1 1,080,000
2  TYotal cost of section 179 property placed in service (see Instrucions) . s 2
3 Threshold cost of section 179 property before reduction in limitation (see instructions) ... ... ... . ... .. 3 2,700,000
4  Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter-0- 4
5 Dollar limitation for tax vear. Sublract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0-. If mamied filing separately, see nstructions ... ........ 5
6 (a) Description of property {b) Cost (business 5o only) (c) Elected cost
7  Listed property. Enter the amount from line29 ... Lz
8 Total elected cost of section 179 property. Add amounts in column (c), lines6and7 8
9 vaededmmms"wd“nesams ................................................................ 9
10 Camyover of disaliowed deduction from line 13 of your 2021 Form 4562 ... 10
11 Business income limitation. Enter the smaller of business income (not less than zero) or line 5. See instructions 1
12  Section 179 expense deduction. Add lines 9 and 10, but don't enter more thanline 11 ... ... .. 12
13 Caryover of disaliowed deduction to 2023. Add lines 8 and 10, less line 12 ............... [ 13|
Note: Don't use Part Il or Part lll below for listed property. Instead, use Part V.
Partll  Special Depreciation Allowance and Other Depreciation (Don’t include listed property. See instructions.)
14  Special depreciation allowance for qualified property (other than listed property) placed in service
during the tax year. See nstructions e 14
15 Property subject to section 168(f)(1) election s 15
18 Ot depreciplory (el AR i i f e i ot b R R R e e R s 16 1,404
_Partlli  MACRS Depreciation (Don't include listed property. See instructions.)
Section A
17 MACRS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 2022 . 17 | 0
18 ¥ you are elacting 10 group any assets placed in S0nice cunng the tax ysar N0 0N or More general Assel BOCOUNS, CNeCk e ... .............. ﬂ
Section B—Assets Placed in Service During 2022 Tax Year Using the General Depreciation System
y (b) Month and year (c) Basis for depraciation (d) Recovery
(2) Classfication of property placed in (businesshinvesiment use (o) Convention ) Mathed {0) Doprecmton deduction
so0dce only-sea_inslnucions) penod
19a _ 3-year property
b S-year property
¢ 7-year property
d 10-year property
e 15-year property
f 20-year property
g 25-year property : 25 yrs. SiL
h Residential rental 27.5 yrs. MM S/IL
property 27.5 yrs. MM SIL
i Nonresidential real 39 yrs. MM SiL
property MM SiL
Section C—Assets Placed in Service During 2022 Tax Year Using the Alternative Depreciation System
20a Class life : SiL
b 12-year ‘ 12 yrs. S/IL
¢ 30-year 30 yrs. MM SiL
d _ 40-year 40 yrs. MM SiL
Part IV Summary (See instructions.)
21 Listed property. Enter amount from fine28 21
22 Total. Add amounts from fine 12, lines 14 through 17, lines 19 and 20 in column (g), and fine 21. Enter
” here and on the appropriate lines of your retum. Pastnerships and S corporations—see NSUCHIONS - .. .eeeerrere..n.. 22 1,404

For assets shown above and placed in service during the current year, enter the R
portion of the basis attributable to section 263A costs 23

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions.

DA

Fi 2
There are no amounts for Pagme"%s e



Year Ended: June 30, 2023 13-3708596

EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC
13540 E BOUNDARY ROAD
MIDLOTHIAN, VA 23112

Electing out of Bonus Depreciation Allowance for
All Eligible Depreciable Property

The above named taxpayer elects out of the first-year bonus depreciation allowance under IRC
Section 168(k)(7) for all eligible depreciable property placed in service during the tax year.



EQUALJUSTIC EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC

13-3708596

FYE: 6/30/2023

Federal Asset Report
Form 990, Page 1

05/08/2024 2:40 PM
Page 1

Date
In Service Cost

Asset

h .
1 TFURNITURE 7/0110 1,185
2 EQUIPMENT 7/01/10 28,616
3 COPIER 8/17122 6,295
4 FEEDER 9/08/22 1,995
5 COMPUTER 60823 1,290
Total Other Depreciation 39,381
Total ACRS and Other Depreciation 39,381
Grand Totals 39,381
Less: Dispositions and Transfers 0
Less: Start-up/Org Expense 0

Net Grand Totals

39,381

Basis
179Bonus _for Depr _ PerConv Meth

1,185
28,616
6,295
1,995
1,200

39,381

39,381

39,381
0
0

39,381

Current

W g~

1,049
333
22

1,404

1,404

1,404
0

1,404




EQUALJUSTIC EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC

05/08/2024 2:40 PM

13-3708596 AMT Asset Report Page 1
FYE: 6/30/2023 Form 990, Page 1
Date Bus Sec Basis

Asset Description In Service  Cost % 179Bonus _for Depr  PerConv Meth _ Prior Current
1 TFURNITURE 7/0110 0 0 0 HY 0 0
2 EQUIPMENT 7/01/10 0 0 0 HY 0 0
3 COPIER 81722 0 0 0 HY 0 0
4 FEEDER 9/08/22 0 0 0 HY 0 0
S COMPUTER 6/08/23 0 0 0 HY Q a
Total Other Depreciation 0 0 0 0
Total ACRS and Other Depreciation 0 0 0 0
Grand Totals 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

Less: Dispositions and T'ransfers
Net Grand Totals

(=1

(=]




EQUALJUSTIC EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 05/08/2024 2:40 PM
13-3708596 Depreciation Adjustment Report Page 1

FYE: 6/30/2023 All Business Activities

AMT
Adjustments/
Form Unit Asset Description Tax AMT Preferences
There are no assets that meet the criteria of this report




EQUALJUSTIC EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC

05/08/2024 2:40 PM

13-3708596 Future Depreciation Report FYE: 6/30/24 Page 1
FYE: 6/30/2023 Form 990, Page 1
Date In
Asset Description Service Cost Tax
1 FURNITURE 7/01/10 1,185 0 0
2 EQUIPMENT 7/01/10 28,616 0 0
3 COPIER 8/17/22 6,295 1,259 0
4 FEEDER 9/08/22 1,095 399 0
5 COMPUTER 6/08/23 1,290 258 0
Total Other Depreciation 39,381 1,916 0
Total ACRS and Other Depreciation 39,381 1,916 0
Grand Totals 39,381 1916 0
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corn 990 Two Year Comparison Report l 2‘021 82022
For calendar year 2022, or tax year beginning __ 07/01/22 endng 06/30/23 | o A
Name Taxpayer Identification Number
_EQUAL JUSTICE AMERICA, INC 13-3708596
2021 2022 Differences
1. Contributions, gifts, grants _ . .. .. . 1. 1,532,893 1,515,185 -17,708
2. Membership dues and assessments . ... 2.
3. Govemment contributions and grants ... ... 3.
S | 4 Program service revenue ... ..o 4.
€10 trvvaskmenk T0OM® s 5. 249 221 -28
> | 8. Proceeds from tax exempt bonds . . .. ... s sl R
& | 7. Net gain or (loss) from sale of assets other than inventory 7. -5,940 -17,941 -12,001
8. Net income or (loss) from fundraising events 8.
9. Net income or (loss) from gaming ... .. ... ... 9.
0. Net gain or (loss) on sales of inventory . ... ... 10.
1' m m D L L R T 11' e
2. Total revenue. Add lines 1 through 11 12, 1,527,202 1,497,465 -29,737
3, Grants and similar amounts paid 13. 902,393 687,890 -214,503
4. Benefits paid to or for members ... 14.
* 115. Compensation of officers, directors, trustees, etc. .. 15. 95,493 98,145 2,652
@ 116. Salaries, other compensation, and employee benefis ... 16. 517,648 564,508 46,860
o 17. Professional fundraising fees . ... ... 17.
2 Hg. Oter professional fees 18, 38,066 27,638 10,428
W {19, Occupancy, rent, utilities, and maintenance .. 19. 19,694 20,040 346
0. Depreciation and Depletion _..................ccceeeeuinnnce 20. 1,404 1,404
1. OMher eXPENSES | . ... .. .oooeeeeiieiieiaeeaeeseeeaeens 21. 163,555 174,779 11,224
Total expenses. Add lines 13through21 22. 1,736,849 1,574,404 -162,445
Excess or (Deficit). Subtract line 22 from line 12 23. -209,647 -76,939 132,708
Towl exemptrevenue 2|  1,527,202| 1,497,465 -29,737
s' Twl mm mnue .......................................... 25'
§ 6. Total excludable revenue 26. -5,691 -17,720 -12,029
BTG .coccissismnssssssomsions 2. 376,394 383,854 7,460
e S . 674,985 710,688 35,703
Rt OEINN - oo 2. -298,591 -326,834 -28,243
g Number of voting members of goveming body 30. 5 5
Number of independent voting members of goveming body 3. 5 S
Number of employees ... 32, 14 16
Number of volunteers 33.
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